The Cherokee Advocate

July 15, 174
APPOINTMENT OF TEACHERS

First Education District
	Name of School
	Name of Teacher

	
	

	Caney school
	 William Cary

	Coodys Bluff
	Frank Howard

	West Point
	A. P. Edmondson

	Independent
	J. H. Covel

	Salina
	M. McCoy

	Pheasant Hale
	Lucy Keyes

	Going Bryan
	Flora Riley

	Bryan's Chapel
	S. M. Ramsey

	Beatles Prairie
	G.T.B.  Perry

	Honey Creek
	I. G. Kersling

	Delaware Town
	J. T. Woodall

	most Reinjured
	George Freeman

	Russell Creek
	Frank Rashburn

	Prairie City
	J. Blythe

	Hickory Grove
	W. C. Woodall

	Ballard's
	R. C. Parks

	Contentious
	A. Gansbird

	Vanita
	S. O. James

	Lonoke
	C. J. James

	Saline Creek
	Kella Mackey

	Downing School
	M. J. Hicks

	Wa-sta-yeh
	J. P. Woodall

	Mitchell Springs
	J. H. McCord

	Vawas Valley (col.)
	Edward Archer

	
	

	 Second Educational District
	

	
	

	Tah-equah
	J. B. Vann

	Assistant
	Lizzie J. Ross

	 Eureka
	W. A.Reece

	Grant (col.)
	L. Hicks

	BootsChapel
	Sarah Spears

	Prairie Grove
	D. L. Lander

	Baptist Mission
	C. M. Bushyhead

	Oak Grove
	J. F. Bates

	Piney
	B. Morris

	Whitmire
	LizzieSanders

	Pea Vine
	H. M. Adair

	Teners Valley
	R. M. Wolfe

	Bell School
	CowleCallie 

	Bouble School
	Mattie Sanders

	Muddy Spring
	William H.  Davis

	Honey Hill
	S. Duncan

	Tah-chi-chl
	C. Brown

	Spears School
	A. Spears

	Green
	N. Payne

	July Place
	S. M. Wittenberg

	Swimmer
	N. Butler

	Hungry Mountain
	E. Pope

	Tahlequah (col.)
	S. H. Stevens

	
	

	Third Educational District
	

	
	

	Adam Lacys School
	Sarah Downing

	Zion School
	Mary Teehe

	Lee School
	Breedlove

	A. Mouse
	William Eubanks

	W. Mayfield
	Mary Parks

	Sweet Spring
	George Chote

	Vian (colored)
	E. B. Sanders

	White Oak
	Lucy Campbell

	Greenleaf
	William P. Boudinot

	4 Mile Branch (col.)
	M. J. Parks

	Ft. Gibson
	G. S. Mason

	Assistant
	Minnie Cunningham

	Union
	Lucy Rogers

	Black Jack Grove
	D. L. Nicholson

	Dardenne Creek
	H. Lindsay

	Brier Town
	Flora Chamberlain

	Webber's Falls
	G. M. McMillin

	Creek Towns
	L. D. Spears


GENERAL CUSTER'S FIRST OFFICIAL REPORT ON HIS BLACK HILLS EXPEDITION

Assistant Adjutant General Department Of Dakota, St. Paul, Minnesota:

August 8, 1874--the Cherokee Advocate
Sir: this expedition reached this point yesterday, having marched since leaving Fort Lincoln, 227 mi.  We are now 170 mi. in a direct line from Lincoln, and within 5 mi. of the Little Missouri, and within about 12 mi. of the Montana boundary.


After the second day from Lincoln we marched over a beautiful country.


The grazing was excellent and abundant.  Wood sufficient for our wants, and water in great abundance.  When we struck the tributaries of Grand River, we entered a less desirable portion of the country, nearly all the streams flowing into Grand River being more or less impregnated with alkali, rendering the crossings difficult.  We found a plentiful supply of grass, wood, and water, however, even along this portion of our route.  As an evidence of the character of the country, we have marched, since leaving Fort Lincoln, on an average, over 17 miles per day--1 day making 32 miles.--yet our mules and beef cattle have constantly improved in condition, the beef cattle depending entirely upon the excellent grazing we have marched over.  The health of my command is something remarkable--not a man being on the sick report.


Between the forks of Grand River was discovered a cave to which the Indians attach great importance.  The cave extends about 400 ft. under ground, beyond which point it was not practicable to explore it.  Its walls and roof or covered with rude carvings and drawings cut into the solid rock, apparently the work of Indians, although probably by a different tribe than either of those now roaming in this region.  Near the cave was found a white man's skull, apparently perforated by a bullet.  It had been exposed to the atmosphere for several years, as no white men, except those belonging to the expedition, are known to have passed anywhere near the locality.  The discovery of the skull was regarded with unusual interest.  The cave contains numerous articles of Indian equipments, which had been thrown into the cave by the Indians, as offerings of the Great Spirit.   

Our march thus far has been made without molestation upon the part of the Indians.  We discovered no signs indicating the recent presence of Indians, until Day before yesterday, when Captain McDougal Seventh Cavalry, who was on the flying, discovered a small body of about 20 Indians watching our movements.  The Indians scampered off as soon as discovered.  Soon after several signals of smoke were sent up, which are Indian guards interpret as conveying information to the main body of our presence and movement.  As I sent a practice message to all the tribes in testing the region, before the expedition move, and expressed A. desire to maintain friendly relations with them, the signals observed by us may have simply been made to enable the villages to avoid us.  Our Indian guides think differently, however, and believe the Indians mean war.  Should this be the case, they will be the party to fire the first shot.



ORIGIN AND TRADITIONAL HISTORY OF THE WYANDOTTE

"It may seem very strange to you," said the resuscitated Indian, "my friends when I tell you that from the moment I first saw the bald eagle here, in advance of the other birds, he seem to have signaled me out from the rest of our slain friends, and from what I heard him say to the other birds, he had often seen me in the forests, and seemed to know that I left deer r carcasses purposely for his own and other kinds of flesh eaters of the flying species.  It is wonderful to me," he continued, "when I think of the wanderings of my Spirit during the last few days.  I thought I followed and saw the Hawks snatch off my scalp from a tall poll over our enemy's camp; it commenced from a great heights, sailing round and round, down gradually over the open camp of the Cherokee, who were watching the strange maneuvering of the hawk.  Suddenly it swept by the poll over their camp, with the keen sound of whistling wind, and snatched off one of the scalps.  In a moment the hawk was high up in the air again, with my scalp dangling from its talons, then flew northward, leaving the group of Indians at the camp, with upturned faces and utterly county founded."  Putting his hand on his head, "Who!"  He exclaimed, "What is that?  That is not my scalp!"  A roar of laughter preceded the response from his friends, when he was told that they had stuck a piece of raw water skin on his head in the place of his original and missing scalp, and that they went to work as soon as they concluded he was in a trance, instead of burying him, and brought him back to life with medicines.

"I thought one time," he continued, "that the bald eagle and his companions had brought me back to life, and that I returned home, but my mother would not noticed me.  I told her repeatedly I was her son, and that I had come home, but she would not listen to me.  I then thought I pushed her elbow, which caused her to thrust her hand into a cattle of boiling corn and venison, over which he was leaning, giving her great pain from the scald.  I thought too, that I left home in sorrow for not being noticed by my mother.  All seems like a dream to me now."


The now five surviving Wyandotte warriors commenced their journey homeward.  In the close of the third quarter of the 18th-century the Wyandotte and other Indians about Detroit were still annoyed by the savages of the West, and who continue to make hostile intrusions against them in the forests of Michigan, occasionally attacking their habitations on their hunting ground.


 In 1727, or thereabouts, a party of 12 Wyandotte the scouts ventured to the haunts of the enemy in the wilds of Illinois, and before reaching their hunting grounds, they sojourned on the banks of a stream until sometime in the month of February, when they broke up camp and resumed their journey westward bearing a little to the south.


During their third day's march they discovered the tracks of an Indian in the snow.  On the morning of the fourth day they found a fresh footpath that led them down a stream on the ice.  Presently a scattering smoke appeared before them like that of a large encampment on a bluff of the stream which they were following.  On their near approach, they perceived that the sojourners had just broken up camp and had gone down on the ice.  Their broad trail in the snow was followed by the Wyandotte, who soon overtook them.


They were a party of Fox Indians who yet depended on their bows and arrows to kill game and fight their enemies with.  The Wyandotte Scouts were provided with a fire arms.  One of the enemy who was some distance behind his party fixing his pack, was shot down and scalped.  The gun firing startled the Fox Indians and caused them to look back with dismay.  The men on preceiving but a small party of Wyandotte, sent their women and children on down the stream, then turned on the scouts and attacked them with bows and arrows.  The Wyandotte retreated upstream keeping their enemies at a gunshot distance, and reserving their fire until reaching the camping ground which the latter were followed from.  Here the Wyandotte warriors felled trees and hastily erected some kind of fortification, firing at the enemy at the same time.


Being the securely posted, and having the advance in fire arms over the besiegers, they killed and wounded several of them that came within gunshot.


Their camp fires, at nightfall, indicated their intention to continue the siege the next day.  A shower of arrows and the yells of the enemy at dawn of day, aroused up the Wyandotte to a sense of their precarious situation; for they found that they could be starved out if not all slain within their fort.  One of the Wyandotte was killed during the second day's conflict.


Near the close of the third day the besiegers proposed to make peace.  An Indian approached within speaking distance of the fort, having a large, round red spot painted on his naked body, holding up one hey and a painted staff decorated with feathers, equivalent to a flag of truce.  A Wyandotte boy, who had been taken prisoner by the Fox Indians in Michigan, stood by him as his interpreter.


And while the besieged party was holding a consultation over the proposed peace, one of the Scouting party, who doubt of the sincerity of the besiegers, fired at the flag of truce Indian, and both boy and man disappeared in the jiffy.  This outrage or aroused up the savage host, and they renewed their attack on the fort with the vindictiveness of demons, and night closed the conflict of the third day.

During the fourth day the besiegers appeared to be rapidly increasing in numbers, and continue to make furious attacks on the open fort with bows and arrows.


During the night they encircled the fort, at some distance, with bark ropes suspended two or 3 ft. from the ground.  To the ropes were tied a great number of goard shells containing loose, hard substance, to make a rattling sound when the besieged party came in contact with the ropes, should they make an attempted fight in the night, and does give the besieged party warning.


The evening shades of the fourth night were now closing around the Wyandotte warriors, and starvation staring them in the face!  They found their stock of provisions reduced down to a few morsels of dried venison.


Of gloomy silence had succeeded the shouts and yells of the assailants, who were now gathering around their camp fires in the distance.  The silence around the fort continued until the sharp screech of a night Bird broke the monotony, as if giving the besieged party warning of the advancing enemy to the midnight attack.  Presently the ill-fated Scouting party heard the tramping of many feet on the frozen snow.  The Wyandotte war Chief Ta-yatt-na-hoo-shar, now being conscious of the dreadful calamity that awaited them, started off two of his men to take the News home of what befell their friends in the West.  The ropes around the fort having been observed by the Wyandotte at nightfall, the two messengers cautiously crept out from under them.


The rest of the party now began to talk of flight, except the war Chief, who declared that he would not leave his slain bosom friend; and on perceiving that his men were determined to leave the fort, he took hold of the rope and shook a defiantly, making a rattling sound of the gourd shells all around the fort.  In an instant, the enemies or upon them; but the Wyandotte shows rather being cut to pieces fighting them to be taken alive and tortured by the enemy.  They thought and Slade all within reach, as they were cut down one by one.


Their War Chief Was Alone, Fighting over the Body of a Slain Friend--Finding Himself Alone, "Here!” he ex Is claimed, holding his head down, told the enemy to "Strike!”  -- down came the tomahawk and thus fell the Chief of the two scouts!

In this fallen Chief the French commandant at Detroit had always found a true friend and faithful, and the news of his fate stirred up the ire of the commandant, who vowed vengeance on the fox Indians and their allies, the Wears, Pe-Ya-keeshawas, and other tribes of Illinois and during the spring following, sent an expedition into their country from Fort Detroit; and sent some of his troops with cannon, in barges around by Michilimackinac to “Little Fort,” some eight or ten miles beyond Chicago, on the lake shore.  In the meantime a war party, composed of Wyandotte, Ottawa, Chippewa and Pottawatomie, journeyed across the country to where they met (according to appointment) the French and some Pottawatomie Indians, (of the northern Illinois, and Indiana territories) on the Illinois River some eight miles form Chicago. From there the whole French and Indian army marched to the village of the enemies, who were driven from their habitations, down the south bank of the river for several miles, or until reaching the brow of a high rocky hill, up which they were driven from the valley, but the low and scattering evergreen trees on the summit afforded the refugees a scanty cover.


The rapid current of the river sweeps the base of the high perpendicular rock of this hill or bluff, on the north side; at the south-west side, in a dell, was a grove of timber and among the tops of the trees some of the besieged Indians had come themselves, to keep clear of the grape-shot which the French were firing among them, from the valley.


Some of the women and children were found lodged among the tree tops, after the siege, still alive, and who were helped down by the friend after their pursuers had left.

 A large portion of the savages, however, had made their escape soon after they were driven from the village.  There was but one winding way up to the craggy height by which their covert could be reached in the besiegers being aware that the refugees could roll down boulders or start some of the loosed shelving rocks upon them, concluded  not to venture up, but adopted  the plan of starving the enemy out, by close siege.  The French had stopped firing grape-shot among them.


September 19, 1874-- We published today and account of the unlawful and barbarous treatment of some families by Deputy United States Marshall Hawkins, which it seems occurred in the neighborhood of Boggy Depot, Choctaw Nation.  There is no language in which to sufficiently execrate such a creature--we will not disgrace the name of man, by applying it to him, for such acts.  Deputy marshals are proper enough officers, when they confine themselves to the law and their duties, but when they prostitute the privileges of their position to the purpose of robbery and oppression, as has been too often the case in the country, we shall take pleasure in holding them up to the scorn and contempt which is do their action.


We are not in favor of mob law, or violence in retaliation, but we must say if the charges in the article referred to are correct, that a little quick hanging would be but justice to this Hawkins, and rid the country of the worst than scoundrel.  

A Resolute Criminal

June 3, 1876—Cherokee Advocate—Sam Osage who was tried and acquitted in Illinois District on Monday the 22nd May, was immediately arrested on a charge of stealing a cow from Henry Starr.  His trial was held on the 29th and resulted in a verdict of guilty.  Judge George Sanders then sentenced the prisoner to 39 lashes on the bareback.  The blows were administered as heartily as a strongman could well lay them on, the culprit being tied after the usual fashion with his hands around a tree.  Osage did not flinch, or show the slightest sign.  The Sheriff unloosed him after 29 lashes were given, having misunderstood the sentence.  Osage whooped after being freed, but when the discussion arose about the sheriff's error, cut the matter short by saying " ten more" and gave himself promptly up to be lashed again, with the same exhibition of indifference during the ordeal as before.


Mrs. Mary Eliza kept couch, was born May 19, 1845, was united in marriage to Peter Couch November 25, 1863.  Died at her home near Cody's Bluff, May 27, 1876.  For some months she had been declining under the slow wasting disease, consumption.  She earnestly sought pardon at the hands of God and died expressing her willingness to depart.  She leaves a husband and five small children and many kind friends to born her loss.  Cody's Bluff, May 27, 1876.


 Fort Smith

Scene In The United States Court Room

The first Murderer Convicted At This Term

June 10, 1876-- Cherokee Messenger-- A correspondent of the Little Rock Gazette writes as follows from Fort Smith:


As we entered the crowded room we saw many Wild Indians of the Kiowa, Comanche and Kickapoo tribes, summoned there as witnesses.  The most of them were massive specimens of humanity and their faces being bedaubed with red and black paint, attracted considerable attention.  There squaws accompanying them were dressed in fantastic male attire and the only way to distinguish the sex of one from the other was by the multiplicity of the brass trinkets worn in the nose and ears.  There are hundreds of witnesses attending this term of the court and the streets of Fort Smith are filled with strangers, making business both lively and profitable for the merchants.

Three Wichita Warriors were present in the court room, testifying in the case of the United States versus John Valley, who is being tried for a horrible murder committed by him in the Indian Territory one year ago.  From Major Pierce, the jailer, we learned the history of the case, which may be summed up as follows; the United States pays annuities to a number of persons living in the territory and among others who received remuneration from the government as a little boy 8 years of age, who, for a longtime had been living with the Valley's brother.  When the time arrived for the annuity to be paid, a man to the name of Hackett claimed that the boy was his son and demanded of Hoag, the Indian agent that on this account the money should be paid to him.  Mr. Hoag granted the request of Hackett, after the latter had proved his relationship to the boy and paid him the money.  John Valley in the evening procured a shotgun from a neighbor and heavily loading it was buckshot, started for Hackett's house, where he found him sitting on the porch.  He took deliberate aim at the object of his vengeance and discharged the right barrel of the gun, mortally wounding the father of the child.  He then left the man he had brutally murdered, saying him as he walked away, "I'll learn you how to rob my brother."


Later
Since writing the above John Valley has been found guilty of murder in the first degree.  The Council for the defense made strenuous efforts to convince the jury that Valley was insane when he committed the murder of Hackett.  The jury was out nine minutes and in that short length of time decided the fate of this Peoria Indian.


Ossey Sanders is the Cherokee condemned to be hanged on the second day of next month.  Sanders is the man whom the President reprieved and saved from being hanged with the five that expiated their crimes the third Friday of last April.  He is still as pious and religious as ever; says he thinks nothing on earth, that he never dreams of the executive pardoning him and that he is willing to die anytime God sees fit to call him.  The principal part of the morning and evening with Valley cooperating with him devotes to religious exercises, which consist of singing and praying in his native tongue.


Forty-nine prisoners answered to their names this morning at the jail and Deputy Marshal Kidd and party brought five more to be locked up with the others.  Since the opening of this session of the court, 18 prisoners had been convicted and sentenced--twelve for larceny, three for assault with intent to kill, to 40 illicit distilling and one for violating the revenue loss.  Nearly all the Deputy Marshals are out upon Aarons of arrest and the dangers encountered by them with the children of the forest are anything but inviting.


Kinch West the famous outlaw and robber, with the few of his followers were captured near the Kansas line by Mr. Kidd and are safely placed under lock and key.  It was this party who attempted to rob a mail train on the Missouri, Kansas and Texas Road not long since that failed in the attempt on account of the presence of armed men, who persuaded them that they were trading upon dangerous ground.


DEAD OR ALIVE
Bill Posey Was To Be Taken Either Way

How An Outlaw Kept His Word and Died Game

July 18, 1877—Cherokee Advocate—Eufaula, I. T.—June 22-- "Killed him while resisting arrest," is the return to be made by Sunthlar-pee of Uchee town, Captain of the Creek Light Horse, in the case of Bill Posey, one of the most notorious and reckless daredevils of the gang of Texas, Indian Territory and Kansas desperadoes; horses and cattle thieves, that have been tested this country for years.  Death to all who stood in their way, and robbing from all but their friends, had been their motto.  With headquarters in Kansas and Texas, their trail has led through the Indian Territory from Coffeyville South through the wilderness of that Osage Reservation, crossing the Arkansas River near Childer’s Ferry, the through the Creek and Chickasaw Nations to Denison or Fort Worth, Texas.  Tens and of thousands of dollars, worth of stock have been stolen from Texas driven north through the Territory, always in charge of some outlaw along the route, driven by hidden and unused trails through a country so apparently settled that often days would elapse with out a human being insight to identify either the stock are thieves.  Picking up cattle feeding on the range belonging to the Indians, their droves were always increasing; the loss to the citizens of the Creek Nation became unbearable.  Among this band Bill Posey,
An Escaped Convict from the Texas penitentiary was a skilled, daring an influential leader.  A Spanish Mexican with a claim to Indian blood in his veins, Posey has made his headquarters on Cane at Creek, Polecat and Arkansas River's, drifting back and forth as occasion required, always armed to the teeth.  With a long Spanish knife and 3 six- shooting revolvers in his belt and a 16 loading Henry rifle loaded with buckshot and a disposition to use them at every opportunity, he was an unpleasant person to meet and the terror of the road.  For several years he had been a member of the gang in Texas.  No less than 29 criminal indictments had been found against him in various counties in Texas, the charges ranging from petty larceny to highway robbery and from assault and battery to the hanging of his brother-in-law in the front yard of his residence, in the presence of his agonized family.  Bill Posey had wealthy and influential relatives living in Limestone and other counties in that State, who had managed to screen him until about four years ago, when he was arrested, tried and sentenced to five years in the penitentiary.  He had served out 20 months of his sentence, but so turbulent had he been that he inspired a feeling of terror even among the prison officials.  Bucking and gagging, flogging, or showering failed to subdue him and he was put in the chain gang and set to work on the streets in charge of guards.  All working one day with a twelve pound  ball attached to his leg he watched his chance, struck down one of his guards with a stone, snatched his gun and “Stood Off” four of the guard.

He called on the prison authorities with oaths to come out and re-arrest him and he would kill them all for their cruel treatment.  Holding all the duty officers at bay he slowly retreated towards some horses feeding near.  Getting a horse between himself and the guard, he coolly picked up the ball, slung over the horse, mounted and rode off in safety to his father's house, where he up security his own gun, revolver and a good horse and again crossed the line into the Indian Territory.  While at his temporary home on Cane Creek, two Deputy United States Marshals attempted his arrest; to this he asserted and ask them into the house to dinner before leaving for Ft. Smith.  With four revolvers pointing at his head he coolly walked into the house with them, placed chairs and ordered dinner quick for the three and went about making preparations to leave.  Suddenly he reached under his low couch, brought out his six shooter, sent one ball through the thigh of one Deputy and another through the eye of the other and drove them from the house.  He ordered them to throw up their hands and then coolly ask for the warrant.  This he destroyed, compelled the tout witted conquered officers to go in and partake of the meal prepared for them and let them go back to report their failure.  He vowed never to be taken alive, and
He Kept His Vow

He lived for a part of the time on Cane Creek, midway between Muskogee and Okmulgee, built a block house, surrounded himself with a set of desperate criminals and bid the defiance to all the marshals of Texas or the Territory.  Here for 15 months, he had been on the scout.  During the day, he never, for a moment, laid down his arms.  He slept always with his belt of arms on the bed before him and a sixteen shooting Henry rifle in his hands a fresh horse was always saddled near the door and no man was ever permitted to approach him unless he was covered by the in veritable rifle.  Stimulated by the heavy reward offered by the State of Texas, many attempts were made to arrest and numberless traps laid to catch him off guard.  Nearly every Deputy Marshal in the Territory had tried his best to get the "a drop on him," but failed.  He defied them all.  They have often met him in the streets of Muskogee and Okmulgee when they were the three to one, but were afraid to attempt his arrest.  His reckless bravado led him, out a pure cussedness to put in an appearance of amid a crowd of men, visiting stores, whenever supplies were needed, or taking a set in church amid the worshipers, armed, and taking care to keep the saints always to the front.  So great was The Fear He Inspired, that when he appeared at any cabin in a hurry, the best horse afforded was always placed before him, and no questions asked.  His name was not spoken above a whisper, and when the Indian Journal, dared to connect his name with the robbery of 80 head of cattle up the river, the office was visited by a armed Lieutenant (and shot to death in Texas), bearing orders from his chief to demand an apology and containing a threat to visit the office in person, if not complied with.  An audacious invitation to visit, The Journal office in offering him the freedom of the sanctum, amused him until other events raised the siege.  The United States Marshal and deputies had given up all hope of taking him and gave him a wide berth in their rides through the Territory for criminals.  A few weeks since the governor of Texas made a requisition on the Chief of the Creek Nation, through the United States Indian Agent, for his arrest and return to the Texas the officials.  Chief Ward Coachman placed the necessary papers at once in the hands of Captain Sunthlar-pee, of Uchee town, with orders to bring in.
“Bill Posey, Alive or Dead”

On Friday last and they Captain learned that Posey had visited Okmulgee that day and had a wounded finger amputated and had left, going toward the Arkansas River.  All that night with a posse of two picked men, they followed on his trail, and Saturday evening they came up on him near Concharte town, on Pulled Creek, driving some stray horses ahead of him.  He was well mounted as usual and disdained to run from three Indians.  The Captain ordered him to surrender and throw up his hands.  The fight commenced.  Posey reached for his ever present rifle, but his lost finger was in the way and before he could bring it to bear a load of buckshot went crashing through his right arm, breaking it above the elbow.  As the limb at his side dropped he drop the rifle, drew his revolver with his left and emptied two of the chambers, when another mass of buckshot broke his left arm.  Spurring his well, trained horse, he charged full speed at the Captain, knocking him and his horse over the bluff into the Creek below.  Posey then wheeled upon the posse, who stood their ground, firing at him with their revolvers.  The orders to take him dead or alive must be obeyed.  The fight was now at close quarters.  Riddled with bullets and shot, the flesh torn from his hips, both arms broken, he continued the fight trying to ride down the officers.  Captain Sunthlar-pee had again joined his posse, this time on foot.  A well aimed shot from his revolver tore off Posey’s nose completely.  It seemed Impossible To Kill Him.

 Still he refused to surrender.  Their revolvers and nearly empty, it looked as though he would again escape, but the last shot from the Captain's revolver struck him in the Chen, breaking history all and went crashing up through the his brains.  Mangled almost beyond recognition, game to the last, he fell dead from his horse, making good his oft repeated boast, "that he would die but would never be taken prisoner."  On Sunday last the citizens buried Bill Posey and doubtless the balance of the gang of thieves will be driven out of the Territory.  To much praise cannot be awarded the Creek authorities, Chief Ward Coachman and Sunthlar-pee with his brave posse, for ridding the world of one whose crimes are seldom equaled and whose daring bravery, if directed in another cause, would have been worthy of admiration.


SIX HUNDRED MORE

August 8, 1877—Cherokee Advocate—A band of Indians, six hundred in number, of the Tribe of Poncas (so said) have lately arrived a their new home in the Indian Territory west of Arkansas.  We do not know how true the report is, but it is said also that they will occupy a portion of the Cherokee country.  We hope if so it will be that portion, or part of it lying west of 96 °, for the Cherokees have no more country to spare east of that line.

Let us distinctly understand this.

To give any more foreigners the picked portions of our country for the pittance of the dollar and a quarter an acre, while we claim it is covered by a title in fee and say that it is worth $10 an acre to the Railroads is a kind of generosity that would do us honor perhaps if we could afford it.  But we cannot afford it.  According to our arrangement made with the Shawnee and Delaware there are 250,000 acres of the 600,000 of choice agricultural land within the Cherokee limits already gone from the Cherokee and their children forever for which it is customary to boast that we have received one dollar and a quarter an acre.  It is true but a fraction of the amount of land traded away thus it is yet under cultivation and our reservation does not seem much diminished.  But it is gone nevertheless under the contract we have made, which contract provides that when the time shall come, each individual Shawnee and Delaware shall have choice of our whole domain to the number of 160 acres to include the place selected for residents, the whole of it being already paid for by these tribes at the price mentioned.  When this arrangement was made, we were contending for something that should most certainly have enhanced their value of the lands so sold, which was, that they were not held by what is called an
to Indian Title merely but a title in fee from the United States.  And under such a title and no better we also contended that at that same time that the land, thus let go for a dollar and a quarter an acre was worth $10 to the railroad who hankered for and claimed it and were thus so greatly interested in supporting a territorial Bill in Congress.  At all events let us understand that the land we have left is or ought to be worth as much to us as to anyone else not with a view of letting any more of it go, but of retaining and holding it firmly and permanently to the last quarter of an acre.


INDIAN CHIEFS AND BRITISH LORDS

August 22, 1877—Cherokee Advocate-- As long as Sitting Bull was known simply as the head of a tribe of savages whom the United States had conquered and assigned to a reservation, he was an Indian with an outlandish name--no more--a "pushing, roaring and not by any means a Sitting Bull," as the New York Tribune said of him when he commenced hostilities.  After the battle of the Rose Bud for the famous and favorite hero and Indian fighter, General Crook, got pretty severely gored, there began to be double expressed whether Sitting Bull was Sitting Bull at all.  It became quite clear that he was not an Indian but a White man, perhaps a smart frontiersman who had fled from justice.


But after the gallant Custer with his entire command was massacred and used up by Sitting Bull and his warriors, when the latter objected to allowing themselves to be killed by the chivalrous Custer for his own glory, it became positively certain not only that General S. Bull was not only not an Indian, but that he belonged to one of the "first families" of the whites--in fact was of high descent and the fine cultivation.  How else could it be otherwise when another member of one of the "first families," though American and of excellent education, had been beaten in a fight with all the advantages of fighting or not as he chose?  Of course the Bull could be no scrub.  He must be of good blood with a known pedigree and--(what makes the difference between men and cattle) he was not red.


Having reached the conclusion it is no matter of surprise that inquiry has led to the natural discovery that Sitting Bull is in fact a blooded English or French men (there being a little doubt which) but certainly one or the other.  He might have turned out to be an American, but unfortunately for the country there are no titles of nobility on this side of the water and the exploits of S. B. gave him claim to be a Lord at least.  Lord accordingly late he has turned out to be-Lord George Gordon-who had been cheated out of his rights in the old country and had fled to the Sioux,  among whom his native talents--nothing less than Lordly--has won him the first place of honor and influence.


It now seems that the Sioux is not the only Indian Tribe which has a white man of "high degree" for chief.  The Nez Perce has either a Lord, or Knight of the shoestring, or some other title, in Chief Joseph.  The blood of the American Howard's, a family of distinguished name, has not been found adequate to the task of extinguishing Indian Joseph.  Indian Joseph must therefore be somebody whose blood or race is superior to that of General Howard.  We think there is enough evidence in the late fight in Montana, between General Gibbons and the command of Chief Joseph, to prove the latter to be a Count of one of the old French families--a Monpmortency or De Couci perhaps--at all events a family which is able to clean out the Howard's.
But these are not the only scions of noble houses to pretend to be Indians but cannot help discovering themselves by their genius.

There is an unknown gentlemen of a Noble House who lives away down about the Staked Plains  and has quite lately shown his whereabouts by beating a force of United States Troops in that remote region.  Twenty-seven white men were killed.  Of course it took white men, or a white man's genius to kill them in fair fight, which this no doubt was.  The English have a plenty of Lords to run off from their families and wealth, paint their faces and wear flaps, after graduating with honor from Oxford and this unknown Indian Chief of the Staked Plains must be one the Brood; but, in order to do equal justice to the leading white races, we are inclined to opine he is a German Baron.

It is not singular perhaps that English and French Noblemen should run away from their castles a château's and civilized friends to become Chief of Savage half naked Tribes of North American Indians.  But we confess that to us it is a little curious that these runaways should show themselves so superior to their brothers left behind.  If history tells truly the American Army led by its gallant officer's has proved on many a hard fought field its superiority to the best fighting stock of Europe, including officers of the highest military and taken from the highest civil rights there.


“LEAF BY LEAF THE ROSES FALL”
August 22, 1877—We are informed on good authority that certain persons, non-citizens are cutting and rafting walnut timber from the Nation opposite Fort Smith and vicinity to Van Buren.  They make a pretense of working for some of our estimable citizens there to cover the depredation.

The same thing is and has been going on for years close to the Kansas line.  Thus the wealth of the Nation, carefully guarded from themselves, falls into the pockets of outside rouges--no less.

What can be done with non-citizens by our laws?  Nothing.  They may do anything they please and our laws must permit it.  The United States is not interested in protecting our public domain--no one is interested in it but Cherokee's and they cannot, except in their own collective capacity, by complaint made to their Agent.  The remedy is too slow and ineffectual at best.  Non-Citizens cut valuable timber, as they are doing now.  Some citizens must take the trouble upon himself of reporting the case, which is a much the business of 20,000 others as it is his, and he knows it and feels it.  The Solicitor to whom the trespass is reported gets no more for complaining on behalf of the Nation than if he does not and his personal interest is also divided among 20,000 others of course, he will not be in a hurry in every case to do his duty in the promises and if he does, it is only to report quarterly the intrusion complained of with other cases, to the Principal Chief.  It takes a more time for the Chief to complain to the Agent and when the Agent gets ready to act, it will be after inquiry and investigation, lest injustice may be done through misrepresentation.  By the time the order to stop reaches the depredator he has had time to make his pile and in this manner our country has been stripped of a great amount of valuable timber along the Kansas line and now the same thing has commenced on the Arkansas River.

This valuable timber (walnut) generally grows upon the best of our lands, the high rich bottoms of streams.  Had the law, proffered with the rest of the New Code, been adopted which allowed citizens to choose for themselves and children tracts of land to improve under our laws, when they could--each tract being well defined and described in from the central small improvement required to be made and the tracts so registered in the District Clerk's office--there is no doubt that all of the land including the most valuable and tempting timber would have been selected and registered, and placed thus under the immediate care and charge of citizens, for themselves or children are wards.  They would have seen to it that any trespass of the sort complained of was stoopped without delay and no timber removed at least; and thus the timber of the Nation would have been securely saved to the Nation and its citizens.  By some such means alone may we expect to put a final stop to such stealing--for it is no less.  But until what is everybody's business becomes anybody's business--until it ceases to be nobody's business--can we expect to see the common property in timber preserved as it should be--especially that which grows at points easy of access by land or water, to those who are ready to buy it outside of our limits.


WHERE CUSTER MET DEATH

September 5, 1877—Cherokee Advocate—Custer’s Battlefield, Little Big Horn River, M. T. July 25—The ignorance of army officers, scouts, and guides is demonstrated in their pretended knowledge of this historical battle ground, which knowledge, from my own experience and investigation I find to be greatly at variance with the facts.  In nothing were they further at sea than concerning its locality.  Some held that the distance from Tongue river, near the mountains, did not exceed twenty-five miles; other estimated it a thirty, and none exceeded thirty-five; but we, after two long days ride from the hand of the Little Horn in the mountains (a point much nearer than the tongue River at the present cantonment of the Fifth Cavalry), Carefully compute the distance to be at least forty-five miles.


From an eminence which we reached on the second day, a scene or rarest beauty was beheld.  Beginning with the noble table upon which we stood the ground fell gently away toward the river, straightening out into a bottom as level as a floor and with sides clearly defined by the shaded stream and the bluffs.  Beyond the water appeared the rugged embankment, extending from Reno’s position to on the south to the limit of vision on the north, standing perpendicular save as occasional gap through the general volume of the Little Horn, or through which entrance to fords are made.  Still further back, toward the Rosebud, the silent timberless, sand Wolf Mountain loomed high casting a mild and pleasing shadows over the landscape, which at either extremity of the valley gradually divides, rich with vendure and bright hued with full blown flowers, completed the scenic display.


At last we entered the old village, in attacking which Custer and his men fell.  This temporary Indian camp was about four miles long, a half mile wide and located by the river side, upon a depressed tableland, considerably lower than the valley proper.  Its borders are fringed with a thin growth of timber, which at one time extended all over the bottom, but the felling of trees by Indians to secure bark food for their ponies, left the central portion of the strip almost barren.  At the southern side, we passed through a dense copse covering three or four acres, where, the squaws and papooses were concealed when Custer approached and until the cavalry were securely entrapped in the canon of death.  Beyond this, the ground presented a curious spectacle, tepee and medicine poles were a thick as they could stand, while camp equipage of every kind was scattered all around.  One noticeable feature consisted of the great quantity of leggings lying about and is explainable only by the presumption (amounting to almost positive knowledge) that the Indians discarded them for clothing taken from the soldiery. Further own we saw six burial scaffolds and beneath them (where they had fallen), the bones of as many Indians—the skull of one punctured by and containing a bullet.

 It was nearly dark when we reached the lower ford, about half way through the village; we encamped for the night, wet, cold, hungry and greatly fatigued.  A hasty supper was speedily devoured, our soaking blankets were spread out upon the ground and all hands turned in for a good night’s sleep; but all hands were grievously disappointed, for scarcely had Jack Healy dropped his head upon his saddle pillow when a “something cold, slimy and wiggly” passed over his face.  With a bound that carried him at least ten feet and a yell of “Snakes!” fiercer than ever Sioux uttered, he aroused the camp in a jiffy.  The boys grabbed and pulled on their pants and boots, stirred up the dying fire, and by its light instituted a careful search with sticks for the loathsome reptiles.  No snake was found, but lizards by the dozen—great green slimy things—were upturned everywhere.  The ground fairly swarmed with them and a slaughter resulted that did no cease until every lizard found was s killed. Then we tired our beds again, but with a lurking fear of a second attack. And it soon came. Bob Snodgrass being the first victim, your correspondent the second.  Camp was again stirred; another battle followed, another slaughter and for the third time we sought rest, but with an experience as before, save it culminated in our remaining up and awake the remainder to the night.


I have just finished a ride over the battlefield and have beheld a condition of things that must make the judicious grieve.  Thirteen months today, General George A. Custer and over three hundred brave followers, while in the nation’s service, were mercilessly massacred by savages, not one of whom has ever been called to account for the crime.  Worse than this, the very chiefs--the head and front of the butchery, are today the pets and protégés of those who comrades were here killed and their bodies horribly mutilated; are fed, clothed, and in the paid employ of the people and the forces associates of the remnant of the gallant Seventh.  Is not this as pitiable as it well could be?  No, for while these murderers, arrayed in army blue, are enjoying the protection and generous hospitality of the country, or as scouts and guides are conducing Sherman, Sheridan, Crook and others to the massacre ground and pointing out the various points of interest, the bones of the martyred three hundred lie bleaching in the sun, or soaking in the rain that here falls so often in torrents!

The remains have never been buried.  Thirteen months have passed, yet the little band, whose deed of heroism will ever occupy a place in history, have not received the insignificant recognition that a decent burial would accord. Their bones, divested of clothing by brutal savages and of flesh by famished wolves and howling coyotes, fingered by every curiosity hunter, or kicked by ever hostile who may chance over the field.  I write the truth and nothing but the truth and challenge Sherman, Sheridan, or Crook all of whom have recently visited the ground with force sufficient to have gathered and properly interred the poor remains, to contradict my statement. As they may insist that the bodies were buried, I will present the facts in the case. Two days after the massacre a force—a company, I think--was sent with two picks and shovel to bury the bodies. Wild animals had caused great havoc with the dead, tearing bodies asunder and scattering fragments over the ground, but these were collected as best they could, placed in piles upon the surface and so thinly covered with dirt that the first rain washed it all away.


No further attention was given the matter until the first of this month, when Mike Sheridan and two companies of the Seventh Cavalry were sent in to secure the remains of all officers for removal to Leavenworth.  This officer did manifest a little feeling by covering the bodies again with dirt, but that night’s rain again undid the work and the fragments were once more scattered over the ground. A few days ago Generals Sheridan and Crook, escorted by four companies of the Fifth Cavalry and several Indian scouts (last year’s hostiles) came over the mountains on a pleasure trip, buffalo hunt, etc., and as they were obliged to pass near here on their way out, they naturally “took in” the battlefield, and with sufficiently detail to go through the ceremony of again recovering the bones.  The work was so shabbily preformed that scarily a single “grave” could be found, through which the contents did not protrude.  Today we had another terrific storm and at the present moment there is not a particle of earth upon a single bone of the entire three hundred skeletons, nor is it probable that there ever wild be unless placed there by the elements, or through the sympathetic efforts of some part of hunters.

Five companies of cavalry have picnicked in this vicinity of week’s totally unemployed save in guarding themselves yet they have made no effort to cover up the bones of their dead comrades.  And now, as I write, Sheridan’s escort of four  companies, commanded by Major Hart, are encamping on the plain at my feet having shipped the Generals at the mouth of this river and are now on their return to comfort and full rations after their arduous four days march, and I am confident that they will neglect to offer even a shovel full of dirt as a tribute to the bravery of the dead.


Great indignation is expressed by the citizens (prospectors) who are visiting the field in large numbers, and a Christian burial service would have been held today, with a few humanitarian miners officiating, had not Sheridan’s escort, of two hundred m


Crossing Little Big Horn, or Custer River, to the east side, a well defined trail leads up a gradual slope a quarter of a mile in length.  The ground is covered with sage brush, prickly pears, and sparse, coarse grass and destitute of the rocks an timber that the uninformed fancy here and there upon the historic field.  The sun shone with full power as we slowly made the ascent, and the morning air, impure by association, seemed stagnant and dead. We read the summit and grazing around for some rocky cannon as our fancy had pictured. It—some narrow pass accessible only at it extremities and commanded by frowning cliffs overhanging either side, we saw instead a ravine with gently shopping sides, of slight depression, not a half mile in length and free from timber, rocks, or anything furnishing an ambuscade.  At our feet were the uncovered remains of eighteen men, in six piles, with a piece of tepee pole, denoting that once the farce of a burial had been performed. ;Upon one of these ‘tombstones’ hung a white sombrero, relic of a member of the seventh, with two bullet holes through it, a clean cut as if made by an axe, and clotted blood.  Near by were the carcasses of two horses; to the north, distant a few feet, were heaps of bones so mixed that it was impossible to count the number of persons represented. A little further on and another ‘grave,” containing the bones of three man, appears behind the skeleton of a horse evidently shot to be used as a breastwork.

A heavy trail runs along the crest of the divide, separating the river and ravine and is strewn and flanked by whitened bones, equipments and clothing.  Three hundred yards up this trail we came upon the knoll where Custer and the remnant of his command made their last stand and perished.  The elevation is but little above that of the divide of which it is the terminus and is apparently a commanding position, but so powerful was the enemy and so weak the national forces when this point was finally gained, that the entire destruction of the troops became an easy matter.


Upon the slope toward the river I counted twenty-eight heaps of bones and the skeletons of fourteen horses.  It was impossible to accurately determine how many soldiers were originally deposited in these promiscuous piles, but it is safe to compute the number at 100, among the number being tom Custer, brother of the General.  The “graves” are huddled together without regard to order and are apparently located where the several men fell.  On top of the hill where Custer was killed, there are four graves and the skeletons of twenty horses, among the latter being that ridden by Custer, and which is still recognizable


Passing down to and up the canon, we met, first, the carcass of a horse, then several heaps of bones close together and in the center there of a rough, unplanned pine cross upon which is inscribed:

Col. Keogh

And 88

Soldiers

Of

Co. I 7th Cavalry,

Killed

Here

June 25th, 1876

Upon a more unpretentious table are inscribed the words:

Wild

I Co. 7th

To the right at intervals and forming a perfect line extending over the western slope, are ten mounds of bones, the regularity of “graves” indicating death upon the skirmish line.  Passing several scattering graves we reach the head of the canon and upon the high ground a “cross-shaped monument, made of rough boards and present the following inscription:

J. J. Crittenden

Lieut. 20th Inf.


Bones are scattered everywhere and tepee poles by the score mark the spots where, once upon a time they were dumped and covered with an inch or so of dirt.


Such, in brief, is the condition of the field today.  Bad as it may seem in print, it is a thousand times worse in reality.


Version after version of the battle has been laid before the public, no two alike and none authentic, because coming from hostile sources, colored to suit the designs of those in power.  From the teachings of the battle ground and the positions occupied by the remains that now encumber the field, I am forced to conclusions greatly at variance with the generally accepted stores.  I believe that Custer was ordered to attack this village, for surely no man with Custer’s sense would seek inevitable death and attack 6,000 warriors with a command of 300.  His command was divided, Reno, with three companies, moving to the south end of the village, while Custer, with seven companies, proceeded to the north and approached the for through the fatal canon.  Upon reaching the summit at the south end, overlooking the village, he discovered that the encampment extended considerable distance below him, where upon he wheeled about with the intention of crossing further down, but was immediately attacked upon all sides by the hostiles, who number at les 5,000 warriors and several hundred squaws. Retreat was attempted, and continued under a galling fire until the last man perished.


I understand that Sherman has just passed over the field, but as my courier is in waiting to take this to Reno, I must hasten to finish.


A twelve company post is being erected at the mouth of this stream.  Several hundred men are now employed and more are taken on daily.  The post will be commanded by Major Buell and will be known as Fort Custer.
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